Corporate Policy and Resources Committee- 12 October 2023 Subject to Call-in. Call-in will expire at 4.30 pm on Friday 20 October 2023

WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the Meeting of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee held in the Council Chamber - The Guildhall, Marshall's Yard, Gainsborough, DN21 2NA on 12 October 2023 commencing at 6.30 pm.

| Present: | Councillor Trevor Young (Chairman) Councillor Mrs Lesley Rollings (Vice-Chairman) |
|--|--|
| | Councillor John Barrett Councillor Owen Bierley Councillor Matthew Boles Councillor Ian Fleetwood Councillor Lynda Mullally Councillor Roger Patterson Councillor Tom Smith Councillor Mrs Mandy Snee Councillor Paul Swift |
| In Attendance: Emma Foy Ady Selby Sally Grindrod-Smith Amy Potts Matthew Snee Molly Spencer Katie Storr | Director of Corporate Services and Section 151 Director - Operational & Commercial Services Director Planning, Regeneration & Communities Programme Manager Project Officer Project Support Officer Democratic Services & Elections Team Manager |
| Apologies: | Councillor Frazer Brown Councillor Stephen Bunney – due to other Council business in Chairman of Council capacity. |
| Membership: | Councillor John Barrett substituted for Councillor Frazer Brown Councillor Lynda Mullally substituted for Councillor Stephen Bunney |

46 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PERIOD

There was no public participation.

47 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Meeting of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee held on Thursday, 21 September 2023 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

48 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest declared at this juncture.

49 MATTERS ARISING SCHEDULE

With no comments or questions from Members, and no requirement for a vote, the Matters Arising Schedule, setting out the position of previously agreed actions as at 4 October 2023, was **DULY NOTED**.

50 WORK PLAN

With no comment or questions, the work plan was **DULY NOTED.**

51 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED that under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Note: The meeting entered closed session at 6.35pm.

52 COMMERCIAL OPPORTUNITY - OPERATIONAL SERVICES

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Commercial and Operational Service which sought approval to fund and prepare a competitive bid, the nature of which was set out in detail in the report along with a full Business Case.

Members were made fully aware that monies required to develop the bid would only be recovered if the bid was successful. The Committee were in agreement that the rewards, benefits and future potential opportunities out-weighed the risk of bidding, and Members across the Chamber spoke highly of the Officers and the services delivered in this area.

The rational for the delivery mechanism proposed was fully explained and supported by Members with some commenting this alleviated any concerns they had previously had regarding impact on in house-services.

Finally in response to questions, it was confirmed that it was the contracting organisation

who determined the scope for the bid.

Having been proposed and seconded it was unanimously

RESOLVED that: -

- (a) Officers be authorised to prepare and submit a competitive bid as detailed in the report;
- (b) the proposal to deliver the service via a West Lindsey District Council fully owned arms-length trading company, and to add this company to the existing West Lindsey District Council owned company structure be approved; and
- (c) £50,000 from the Invest to Save Reserve be utilised to support the submission of the Bid.

53 LEVELLING UP FUND PUBLIC REALM - PARKS

Members considered the report of the Director of Planning, Regeneration and Communities which sought approval for spend and delivery of the Levelling Up Fund, in respect of Whitton's Gardens, Baltic Mill and Phase 1 Market Place public realm interventions.

As part of the almost £17.5 million LUF programme, the delivery of improved public realm across the town centre was a key priority, with a focus on improving access to and creating more green space, together with improving the town centre public realm.

The three interventions that would be delivered to achieve such outcomes where, Whitton's Gardens, Baltic Mill and the Market Place.

Members were reminded that the Council were contracted to a number of outputs across these interventions which included the planting of trees, creating new green space, improving green space, the redevelopment of Whitton's Gardens toilets and improved public realm.

As a result of the Committee, earlier in the month, approving the revised funding profile for the Cinema and Leisure scheme the revised funding for each of the three remaining intervention sites were outlined to the Committee and detailed in paragraph 2.2 of the report.

Appendix 1 of the report included proposed designs for the revamped Whitton's Gardens including proposals for redeveloping the toilet block, as well as Plans for the Baltic Mill, which would provide a new pocket park, with green and open space.

Members also noted that community consultation on the schemes had highlighted the delivery of a pedestrian crossing at the foot of Silver Street as an emerging priority. Whilst this was not within the scope of the LUF monies, work continued with the Local Highways Authority in respect of this.

In respect of the Market Place, section 7.5 of the report indicated how it was proposed the

Corporate Policy and Resources Committee- 12 October 2023 Subject to Call-in. Call-in will expire at 4.30 pm on Friday 20 October 2023

remaining funds would be used. Further work would then be developed as a phase two, to consider future designs for a more transformative design, and would be the subject of future reports to the Committee.

Finally, the monitoring regime that the Council were contracted to with the Department for Levelling Up Homes and Communities was outlined to Members, with the next return due by 27 October.

Debate ensued and Members considered there had been ample engagement and delivery was now imperative to maintain public confidence. Members were also assured the desire for a crossing was being looked at positively.

In responding to comments regarding the need for investment and funding for the wider District, the Chairman whilst acknowledging the comments, reminded the Committee of the prescriptive nature of this specific Levelling Up Funding. He also outlined recent meetings with a number of parishes where he had been pleased to learn of the work being undertaken in the wider district.

It was also acknowledged that a thriving Gainsborough would in turn generate benefits realised wider than just the town.

Having been proposed and seconded it was unanimously

RESOLVED that: -

- (a) the revised budget, detailed in paragraph 2.2 of the report, for the delivery of the Whitton's Gardens public realm scheme as outlined in Appendix 1 of the report be approved for expenditure;
- (b) the revised budget, detailed in paragraph 2.2 of the report, for the delivery of the Baltic Mill public realm scheme as outlined in Appendix 1 to the report be approved for expenditure;
- (c) the budget detailed in paragraph 2.2 of the report for the delivery of the Market Place Phase 1 Scheme, as set out at paragraph 7.5 of the report; be approved for expenditure; and
- (d) a further report be submitted to the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee to agree options and a budget for the Market Place Phase 2 Scheme.

The meeting concluded at 6.55 pm.

Chairman